Public Document Pack

Licensing Sub-Committee
A meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee will be held as a Virtual
Meeting via Zoom on Wednesday 14 July 2021 at 10.00 am

Agenda
1.

Appointment of Chairman for the meeting of the Sub-Committee

2.

Declarations of Interest
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest that they
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.
Note: Any Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest will not be able to participate
in the hearing, and should therefore notify Democratic Services in advance so that
arrangements may be made for an alternate Member to attend.

3.

Premises License Hearing (Pages 5 - 14)
Report of the Licensing Enforcement Officer
Purpose of report
To consider a Licensing Act application for a premises licence for; Co-Op Stores,
Harborough Road, Brixworth, NN6 9BU.
Recommendations
1.1

To determine the application for a premises licence in accordance with the
Licensing Act 2003.

Catherine Whitehead
Proper Officer
6 July 2021

Licensing Sub-Committee Members:
Councillor Andrew Kilbride (Chair)
Councillor Alan Chantler
Councillor Terry Gilford

West Northamptonshire Council
www.westnorthants.gov.uk

Page 1

Information about this Agenda
Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence and the appointment of substitute Members should be notified to
democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk prior to the start of the meeting.

Declarations of Interest
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the start
of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts &
Supplementary Estimates
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax
must declare that fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax.

Evacuation Procedure
If a continuous fire alarm sounds you must evacuate the building via the nearest available
fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the assembly area as directed by
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.

Access to Meetings
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as
possible before the meeting.

Mobile Phones
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off.

Queries Regarding this Agenda
If you have any queries about this agenda please contact Richard Woods / Maisie
McInness, Democratic Services via the following:
Tel: 01327 322043
Email: democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk
Or by writing to:
West Northamptonshire Council
One Angel Square
Angel Street
Northampton
NN1 1ED

Page 2

Licensing Officer Report
Licence Reference:

New Application

Application Type:

New

Licensing Enforcement Officer:

Agenda Item 3

Andrea Hill

Parish:

Brixworth (in the Brixworth Ward)

Premises:

Co-Op Stores, Harborough Road, Brixworth, NN6 9BU

Applicants Name:

Co-Operative Food Group Limited

Licensable activities requested by the applicant:
1. The premises will be open to the public, between 06:00hrs and 23:00hrs daily
2. Supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises only, between 06:00hrs and
23:00hrs daily.
Current conditions on Applicant’s Licences – Not applicable as New Application
Proposed conditions from Applicant (via their Operating Schedule) – Appendix A
Number of representations made: 2
All Statutory Authorities have been served with a Notice of Application.
Relevant representations have been received from:
Statutory Authorities:

0

Interested Parties:
2
Local residents who live in Brixworth

Please refer to A to D (starting on this page) for valid representations.
Refer to Appendix B for a full copy of the representations
Summary of nature of representations:
The prevention of crime and disorder:
 Potential for increase in antisocial behaviour as a result of the long opening hours being
sought, sale of alcohol, and close proximity to two public houses.
Public Safety:
 Potential for increase in antisocial behaviour as a result of the long opening hours being
sought, sale of alcohol, and close proximity to two public houses.
 Potential for increase in road safety hazards, due to lack of parking directly outside the
premises
Prevention of public nuisance:

Page 3



Potential for increase in antisocial behaviour as a result of the long opening hours being
sought, sale of alcohol, and close proximity to two public houses.

Protection of children from harm:


Potential for increase in antisocial behaviour as a result of the long opening hours being
sought, sale of alcohol, and close proximity to two public houses.

No statutory authorities have made any comments in relation to this premises licence
application.
Applicants information of “Additional steps proposed to promote the four licensing
objectives if the application is granted:
(a)
1.
(b)
1.

2.
3.
4.

5.
6.

General:
The applicant has given thought to the potential impact of the grant of this application
on the four licensing objectives and, having regard to the locality, considers that the
following conditions are appropriate and proportionate.
The Prevention of Crime and Disorder:
The premises shall maintain a CCTV system which gives coverage of all entry and exit
points. The system shall continually record whilst the premises are open and conducting
licensable activities. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 28 days and
shall be capable of being easily downloaded. Recordings shall be made available upon
the receipt of a request by an authorised Officer of the Police or the Local Authority.
There shall be "CCTV in Operation" signs prominently displayed at the premises.
An incident log (whether kept in a written or electronic form) shall be retained at the
premises and made available to an authorised Officer of the Police or the Local
Authority.
The premises shall operate a proof of age scheme, such as a Challenge 25, whereby the
only forms of acceptable identification shall be either a photographic driving licence, a
valid passport, military identification or any other recognised form of photographic
identification incorporating the PASS logo, or any other form of identification from time
to time approved by the secretary of the state.
The premises will be fitted with a burglar alarm system
The premises will be fitted with a panic button system for staff to utilise in the case of
an emergency.

(c)
1.

Public Safety:
The premises licence holder shall ensure that the appropriate fire safety, and health and
safety regulations are applied at the premises.

(d)
1.

The prevention of public nuisance:
A complaints procedure will be maintained, details of which will be made available in
store and upon request.

(e)
1.

The Protection of Children from harm
All staff will receive comprehensive training in relation to age restricted products and in
particular the sale of alcohol. No member of staff will be permitted to sell age restricted
products until such time as they have successfully completed the aforementioned
training.
An age till prompt system will be utilised at the premises in respect of age restricted
products.

2.

Page 4

3.

A refusals register (whether kept and written or electronic form) will be maintained at
the premises

Application received on:

20 May 2021

Proposed Hearing Date and time:

Wednesday 14 July 2021

Date invitations sent:

23 June 2021

Licensing Officer’s Statement: As the West Northants Council Licensing Enforcement
Officer (Daventry Area) I would advise the committee of their obligations to determine this
application with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives.
The applicant is applying for a new premises licence for sale of alcohol in the convenience
store, for consumption off the premises. If approved, the licence would enable customers to
purchase alcohol between 6:00hrs and 23:00hrs daily. It is not unusual for a shop of this type
to apply for hours of this length, in a large or small village or town setting, right next to
residential properties. This is not the longest opening hours we have in the district for a
convenience store, there are some that start even earlier in the morning. Each case is dealt
with on its own merits.
The building has been sat empty for a few years and is now being demolished, and
construction of a new retail unit is underway. It was previously the Red Lion hotel and public
house. Planning permission was approved by an inspector in 2020 on appeal, as the council
originally refused the change from a pub to a shop, mainly due to consideration of the
conservation area and plans.
The representations we received were in relation to potential antisocial behaviour, length of
opening hours and potential safety concerns with lack of parking available.
I have been negotiating with the interested parties to attempt to resolve their concerns prior to
the hearing, but it is looking unlikely that this will be successful as they have different views
regarding the suitability of the conditions and opening hours.
When granting a premises licence it does not grant any permission under the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990. The applicant should check that any use, activities and hours of
operation permitted by a licence are within the conditions and limitations of the existing
planning permission. The applicant could be liable to enforcement action under the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 if there is any breach of any existing planning permission. Any
planning breaches would be dealt with by Planning Enforcement Officers.
Some of the comments made by the parties who made valid representations are not strictly in
respect of licensing matters. We can only take into account and apply weight at a licensing
hearing, to anything that falls within the four licensing objectives. We cannot deal with
planning matters during a hearing, and vice versa, a planning committee is not able to deal
with licensing matters during a committee meeting. Therefore, any reference to the
Conservation Area which strictly relates to a planning issue, will not be addressed at the
licensing hearing. If the concerns relate to a consequence of one or more of the four licensing
objectives, it may be discussed and considered.
The applicant has supplied a list of conditions they believe address any issues. For the
applicant proposed conditions refer to Appendix A.

Page 5

Councillors you need to consider if the conditions proposed by the applicant are robust
enough, or if you need to consider further conditions. Any that are considered necessary,
proportionate and appropriate to promote the four licensing objectives may be adopted. You
also have the option of refusing the application in full or part; amending the extent of the
licensable activities by reducing the timings; or, adding or amending proposed conditions. Any
of these options can be applied if you feel they are necessary, appropriate and proportionate.
The applicant’s legal advisor has supplied a Welcome Pack and Age Matters presentation, that
is given to new recruits and he will be referring to them both, during the hearing. They have
also supplied some plans of how the premises will look when it is finished. They will be made
available in advance of the hearing.
I have nothing further to add as this is a matter for the committee to determine in the light of
the above matters and any others, it considers material.
Andrea Hill
Licensing Enforcement Officer

Page 6

Appendix A
Conditions proposed by the applicant through their Operating Schedule

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)
The applicant has given thought to the potential impact of the grant of this application on the four
licensing objectives and, having regarding to the locality, considers that the following conditions are
appropriate and proportionate.
b) The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
1. The premises shall maintain a CCTV system which gives coverage of all entry and exit points. The
system shall continually record whilst the premises are open and conducting licensable activities. All
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 28 days and shall be capable of being
easily downloaded. Recordings shall be made available upon the receipt of a request by an
authorised Officer of the Police or the Local Authority.
2. There shall be "CCTV in Operation" signs prominently displayed at the premises.
3. An incident log (whether kept in a written or electronic form) shall be retained at the premises
and made available to an authorised Officer of the Police or the Local Authority.
4. The premises shall operate a proof of age scheme, such as a Challenge 25, whereby the only forms
of acceptable identification shall be either a photographic driving licence, a valid passport, military
identification or any other recognised form of photographic identification incorporating the PASS
logo, or any other form of identification from time to time approved by the secretary of the state.
5. The premises will be fitted with a burglar alarm system
6. The premises will be fitted with a panic button system for staff to utilise in the case of an
emergency.
c) Public Safety
1. The premises licence holder shall ensure that the appropriate fire safety, and health and safety
regulations are applied at the premises.
d) The Prevention of Public Nuisance
A complaints procedure will be maintained, details of which will be made available in store and upon
request.
e) The Protection of Children from Harm
1. All staff will receive comprehensive training in relation to age restricted products and in particular
the sale of alcohol. No member of staff will be permitted to sell age restricted products until such
time as they have successfully completed the aforementioned training.
2. An age till prompt system will be utilised at the premises in respect of age restricted products.
3. A refusals register (whether kept and written or electronic form) will be maintained at the
premises

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B - Part 1

Jonathan Harris
Councillor for Brixworth Ward

~!E(ClE~VlEID
Licensing Department
Lodge Road
Daventry
NN11 4FP

SJune 2021

---------------

Reference License Application Cooperative Food Group - Red Lion Site Brixworth
To Whom It May Concern

Further to the notice regarding the licensing application for the new Cooperative Store in
Brix.worth, I am writing to express my concerns about the hours being requested.
The existing Co-op has operated perfectly well with a license for the sale of alcohol between
the hours of 7am and 1Opm (obviously with some conditions) for many years to match the
current store's opening hours.
There is absolutely no reason for an extension to these hours of 6am - 11 pm being granted.
Whilst this store will be sited on the land of the former Red Lion public house, the store will
inevitably be far busier than the public house, which was largely a walk-to destination.
Brixworth has suffered from examples of anti-social behaviour in recent times and extending
the hours available to sell alcohol will only compound the issue further.
Discussions have taken place between myself, representatives of the Parish Council and the
Cooperative Food Group and we have been told that the new store opening hours will match
those of the existing store i.e. 7am until 1Opm.
Therefore I request that the license be granted to match the current store opening hours 7am - 1Opm and no earlier or later.

Jonathan Harris
Councillor for Brixworth Ward

~ Jonathan Harris - working for you - all year round

Page 9

Published and promoted by Alan Knape on behalf of Jonathan Harris (Liberal Democrats), both at 2 Boxgrove Way,
Daventry, Northamptonshire, NN11 2PQ

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B - Part 2

7th June 2021
Licensing Department
Lodge Road
Daventry
NN11 4FP
Dear Sir/Madam
Notice of Application - Cooperative Food - Red Lion Site Brixworth
I write to object, strongly, about the proposed new licence times as per the application.
The current Coop, located on the Spratton Road, operates 0700-2200. Clearly there are
conditions to these timings on occasions.
Therefore, there is absolutely no reason for a licence to be approved for the applied timings of
0600-2300, and I strongly object to these timings for the following reasons.
1. Anti Social Behaviour - Brixworth has suffered from ASB recently and providing a licence for
these times would only compound this issue. The Red Lion site is located between two public
houses and adding extended licence hours to 2300 only encourages the purchasing of alcohol
and "encourages" ASB.
2. I would also refer you to Appeal Decision Appeal Ref: APPN2810/W/15/3009547 from 2015
which is the Chinese Take Away next door to the current Red Lion site. Here you will see that
the Inspector refused an application, one reason being made related to ASB. Therefore, if an
Inspector refuses an application for this reason (for a take away) then it is fair to assume the
selling of alcohol is also somewhat questionable in 'encouraging' potential ASB?
3. The location is in a Conservation Area and the area/residents must be protected from any ASB
and indeed the highways issues that were documented by LHA i.e. their firm objection to the
site location.
I really do not see the need for a licence from 0600-2300 nor indeed 0700-2200 as is the current
store licence. - I firmly object to these licence times and would request a severe reduction in these
timings.

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix C

Page 13

The Bigger Picture – The impact of selling products to under age people
The Toolkit – What tools are there to help you
How old do I look? – Challenge 25, the when and how
Just say no – Refusing a sale

Page 14

Page 15

Hover overs
Challenge 25 Badge
Age restricted Point of Sale
Customer facing till screen

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Customer Facing Till Screen
Challenge 25 badge
Age restricted Point of Sale
CITRUS Policies

Page 30

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Do not scale from this drawing All dimensions and
levels are to be checked on site. All areas are
approximate and are for information only.
This drawings is to be read in conjunction with all
other relevant documents and all works are to
comply with the current Building regulations, British
Standards and Codes of Practice etc.
All details of the existing structure are to be verified
by others on site prior to any works commencing.
The copyright of this drawing and all works executed
from this drawing remain the property of View
Associates Ltd. Any 3rd party survey information
contained on this drawing is not the responsibility of
View Associates Ltd
These drawings have been reproduced from
drawings issued by Archer Architects
Drawings reference
6493(P)011

AD
GH
OU
OR

Hill
Ho

9
10

474850

130a 130 132

474900

Hill House
Cottage

Revision

128

128

4

130a 130 132

474850

Hill House
Cottage

474900

10

9

HA

Hill
Ho

HA

The
Stables

RB

OR
RB

270800

11

Inn

Bartlet'
Wel

RO

The
Stables

3

Red Lion

4

270750

House

Bartlet'
Wel

OU

3
11

270800

GH

RO

AD

House

View Associates Ltd take no responsibility for any
information contained in these survey drawings and
they are reproduced here only for ease of
communication. Any areas noted on the drawings
should be taken as indicative and should be assessed
by a qualified surveyor.

270750

Description

Date

Drawing Number:

Date:

(PL)001 REV c

19.12.19

Stage:

Planning

128a

Existing Location Plan

Drawn By:

Checked By:

IJ

Client:

Southcave Assets Ltd
Drawing Title:

Proposed Block Plan

Page 33

THE RED LION, BRIXWORTH

1:500 @ A2

HH

128b

128b

1

1

128a

Scale:

Existing Location Plan +
Proposed Block Plan

www.viewassociates.co.uk
0

10

20

50

Greystone House, Moss Lane
Altrincham, WA15 8HW
0161 941 7458

Do not scale from this drawing All dimensions and
levels are to be checked on site. All areas are
approximate and are for information only.
This drawings is to be read in conjunction with all
other relevant documents and all works are to
comply with the current Building regulations, British
Standards and Codes of Practice etc.
All details of the existing structure are to be verified
by others on site prior to any works commencing.
The copyright of this drawing and all works executed
from this drawing remain the property of View
Associates Ltd. Any 3rd party survey information
contained on this drawing is not the responsibility of
View Associates Ltd

SALES AREA

USB 2050
EXTERNAL ATM
with housing
Maximum 1800h

ATM
Revision

Lift

Description

Date

Drawing Number:

Date:

(PL)008

25.02.20

Stage:

Planning

YARD

Scale:

Lighweight PVC canopy above
with timber supports

1:100 @ A2

Drawn By:

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

Checked By:

HH

IJ

Client:

Southcave Assets Ltd
Drawing Title:

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

Page 34

THE RED LION, BRIXWORTH

www.viewassociates.co.uk
0

1

2

3

4

5

10

15

Greystone House, Moss Lane
Altrincham, WA15 8HW
0161 941 7458

Do not scale from this drawing All dimensions and
levels are to be checked on site. All areas are
approximate and are for information only.
This drawings is to be read in conjunction with all
other relevant documents and all works are to
comply with the current Building regulations, British
Standards and Codes of Practice etc.
All details of the existing structure are to be verified
by others on site prior to any works commencing.
The copyright of this drawing and all works executed
from this drawing remain the property of View
Associates Ltd. Any 3rd party survey information
contained on this drawing is not the responsibility of
View Associates Ltd

BACK OF HOUSE

Lift

Revision

Flat roof

Description

Date

Drawing Number:

Date:

(PL)003 REV B

Satelite Dishes, Plant + Acoustic Screening

19.12.19

Stage:

Planning
Scale:

1:100 @ A2

Drawn By:

Proposed First Floor Plan

Checked By:

HH

IJ

Client:

Southcave Assets Ltd
Drawing Title:

Proposed First Floor Plan

Page 35

THE RED LION, BRIXWORTH

www.viewassociates.co.uk
0

1

2

3

4

5

10

15

Greystone House, Moss Lane
Altrincham, WA15 8HW
0161 941 7458

Do not scale from this drawing All dimensions and
levels are to be checked on site. All areas are
approximate and are for information only.
This drawings is to be read in conjunction with all
other relevant documents and all works are to
comply with the current Building regulations, British
Standards and Codes of Practice etc.
All details of the existing structure are to be verified
by others on site prior to any works commencing.
The copyright of this drawing and all works executed
from this drawing remain the property of View
Associates Ltd. Any 3rd party survey information
contained on this drawing is not the responsibility of
View Associates Ltd

Revision

Description

Date

Drawing Number:

Date:

(PL)004 REV C

19.12.19

Stage:

Planning

Flat roof
Scale:

1:100 @ A2

Plant + Acoustic Screening
Drawn By:

Proposed Roof Plan

HH

Checked By:

IJ

Client:

Southcave Assets Ltd
Drawing Title:

Proposed Roof Plan

Page 36

THE RED LION, BRIXWORTH

www.viewassociates.co.uk
0

1

2

3

4

5

10

15

Greystone House, Moss Lane
Altrincham, WA15 8HW
0161 941 7458

Facing Brick

Natural Stone

THE RED LION, BRIXWORTH

Signage

Do not scale from this drawing All dimensions and
levels are to be checked on site. All areas are
approximate and are for information only.
This drawings is to be read in conjunction with all
other relevant documents and all works are to
comply with the current Building regulations, British
Standards and Codes of Practice etc.
All details of the existing structure are to be verified
by others on site prior to any works commencing.
The copyright of this drawing and all works executed
from this drawing remain the property of View
Associates Ltd. Any 3rd party survey information
contained on this drawing is not the responsibility of
View Associates Ltd

Signage

0

1

2

3

4

5

Signage

Signage

Proposed North Elevation

Typical Shopfront Section 1:50
Natural Stone

Revision

Description

Date

Drawing Number:

Date:

(PL)005 REV C

19.12.19

Stage:

Planning
Scale:

1:100 @ A2

Drawn By:

HH

Checked By:

IJ

Client:

Southcave Assets Ltd
Signage
Drawing Title:

Proposed Elevations

Proposed West Elevation
Page 37

THE RED LION, BRIXWORTH

www.viewassociates.co.uk
0

1

2

3

4

5

10

15

Greystone House, Moss Lane
Altrincham, WA15 8HW
0161 941 7458

Do not scale from this drawing All dimensions and
levels are to be checked on site. All areas are
approximate and are for information only.
This drawings is to be read in conjunction with all
other relevant documents and all works are to
comply with the current Building regulations, British
Standards and Codes of Practice etc.
All details of the existing structure are to be verified
by others on site prior to any works commencing.
The copyright of this drawing and all works executed
from this drawing remain the property of View
Associates Ltd. Any 3rd party survey information
contained on this drawing is not the responsibility of
View Associates Ltd

Natural Stone

Slate Tiles

Common Brick

Proposed East Elevation

Common Brick

Zinc style cladding

Revision

Description

Date

Drawing Number:

Date:

(PL)006 REV D

19.12.19

Stage:

Planning
Scale:

1:100 @ A2

Acoustic screening approx 2m high

Drawn By:

HH

Checked By:

IJ

Client:

Southcave Assets Ltd
Drawing Title:

Proposed Elevations

Proposed South Elevation

Page 38

THE RED LION, BRIXWORTH

www.viewassociates.co.uk
0

1

2

3

4

5

10

15

Greystone House, Moss Lane
Altrincham, WA15 8HW
0161 941 7458

Do not scale from this drawing All dimensions and
levels are to be checked on site. All areas are
approximate and are for information only.
This drawings is to be read in conjunction with all
other relevant documents and all works are to
comply with the current Building regulations, British
Standards and Codes of Practice etc.
All details of the existing structure are to be verified
by others on site prior to any works commencing.
The copyright of this drawing and all works executed
from this drawing remain the property of View
Associates Ltd. Any 3rd party survey information
contained on this drawing is not the responsibility of
View Associates Ltd

Adjacent
Poperty

Line of Existing Pub

Approximate wall height

Revision

Description

Date

Approximate adjoining ground level

Drawing Number:

Date:

(PL)007 REV B

19.12.19

Stage:

Planning
Scale:

1:100 @ A2

Drawn By:

Checked By:

HH

IJ

Client:

Southcave Assets Ltd
Drawing Title:

Proposed Section A,A
through East Boundary

Page 39

THE RED LION, BRIXWORTH

www.viewassociates.co.uk
0

1

2

3

4

5

10

15

Greystone House, Moss Lane
Altrincham, WA15 8HW
0161 941 7458

This page is intentionally left blank

Food

Core
Colleague
Induction
Welcome Pack

Name:

Page 41
1

Welcome to your store
This pack will help you through
your induction period with us.
There’ll be activities, checklists and space for you to make notes and jot down ideas.
Don’t worry, your Store Manager and Buddy will be with you every step of the way.
You’ll learn most things in store but you will also be heading out for a day.
This is your pack to look after and keep. As the saying goes, the more you put into it, the more you will get
out of it!

Page 42
2

Contents
Your core journey

4

Finding your bearings

5

Community and membership

11

Core modules

15

Welcome to Co-op

21

Department training

23

Additional department training

31

Ready, set, go!

33

Page 43
3

Your core journey
Day 1
Let’s get started!
Day 1 is all about getting you set up to be
great in your role.
Your first day will be spent with your Store
Manager or Buddy, finding your bearings in
your store and learning all about our Co-op
difference.
To ensure you’re safe and we abide by
the law, you may need to complete some
additional modules. Don’t worry though,
your Store Manager or Buddy will take you
through these.

Week 1
We’re setting you up for success!
During your first week you will need to
complete all of your core modules. These
include things such as Age Matters and
Shop floor basics. You’ll do these either
on e-learning or with the help of your
Buddy.
You’ll find a full list of what you need to
complete in the ‘Core modules’ section of
this pack.

Week 2 - 4
Department Savvy!

Week 2 - 12
Become a specialist!
These areas are optional and will be
based on your development and what
your store needs.
If you have these departments in store
and they are of interest to you, have a
conversation with your Store Manager
about getting trained on them.
They include departments such as
Bakery, Delicatessen, Food Safety Level 2,
Post Office, and Cash.

We want you to know all of the basic
departments in the store, so, during
your first 4 weeks you’ll be learning all
about Electronic Point of Sale (EPOS),
News and Mags and Checkouts.
Welcome to Co-op!
During this time you’ll also need to
attend an event called ‘Welcome to
Co-op’ which is a really fun and
informative day with other new
colleagues from your area, to learn
about our Co-op and how you can have
a positive impact on our customers and
your store.

Reviews
During your first 12 weeks with us
your line manager will spend time
with you at weeks 4, 8 and 12 to
review your progress and support
you during your induction period
with us.

Page 44

4

Finding your bearings

Page 45
Finding your bearings

5

Welcome to our Co-op
What happens when down-to-earth, decent, hard-working people, who are free to use their
best judgement, work for an organisation which carefully balances profits with ethics for the
benefit of its members?
The answer is that you get magic. Co-op magic. Be part of it.

Welcome
You’re starting work for one of the largest co-operative consumer groups in the world and we have a lot to be
proud of. Over the next few weeks, you’ll be introduced to our business and learn more about our history but
for now, let’s talk about the really important things, like finding your way around your store, our policies, and
some of the great benefits you’ll get by working with us.
One of the first things that will happen is that your Store Manager will link you up with a Buddy. Your Buddy
will help you navigate the first few weeks and will show you the ropes. Don’t be afraid to ask questions, it’s
important to us that you feel comfortable and happy at work which is what your Buddy is there for.
Don’t forget to have a look at our website, which has lots of information about our policies, perks and people:
colleagues.coop.co.uk/
You’re going to meet your team and learn lots over the next few weeks.
Make some notes about the basics below to help you remember:
My Store Manager’s name is:
My Team Manager’s name is:
My Team Leader’s name is:
My Buddy’s name is:
My teams’ names are:

If I am not able to come in I should call:
Pay day is:
My holiday entitlement is:
My membership number is:
* It’s really important that on day 1, you log on to MyHR and enter your bank details – if you don’t do this, we
won’t know where to pay you.

Page 46
6

Finding your bearings

Our Co-op and you
Aside from a great business and fantastic people, there are plenty of other reasons to work with us.
Co-op Colleague Membership
Great rewards when you buy
Co-op own brands. 5% for you,
plus 1% for your local community.
Electrical
5% colleague discount on a huge
range of electrical goods, plus
Co-op membership rewards on
selected items.

Insurance
Special colleague discounts of
up to 25% on home, pet and
motor insurance, plus savings on
breakdown cover.
Legal Service
5% off Conveying, Will, Family,
Personal Injury and Probate and
Estate Administration.

Food
Great food for less, with 10%
discount on top of your 5%
membership rewards.

Pensions
Helping you save for the
retirement you want, with valuable
contributions from the Co-op.

Funeralcare
Exclusive colleague discounts on
funeral arrangements and
pre-paid funeral plans.

Plus much more, including:
• Child care vouchers
• Death in Service
• Retail and Leisure Discounts
• Rental Deposit Loans
• Credit Union

Simply scan the QR code above
or go to:
coop.co.uk/benefits
To register, just have your
employee number and national
insurance number handy.
You can access the site from work
or home, meaning you can take
advantage of our offers at
any time.

Useful Contacts
USDAW
The Co-op recognises the rights
of employees to be members of
trade unions and, as a long term
supporter of the trade union
movement, actively encourages
membership by all employees.
Co-op recognises USDAW as
the appropriate trade union
to represent colleagues and
negotiates terms and
conditions yearly.
Please visit the USDAW website at
www.usdaw.org.uk or call
0800 030 8030
for more information.

Employee Assistance Programme
Offers a range of services such
as counselling, information,
signposting and support across
a wide range of issues such
as personal and work related
concerns, legal and financial
advice, health, and child and elder
care.
The EAP service is confidential,
available 24/7 and run by an
independent provider.
Call 0800 069 8854
For online support visit:
www.validium.com
Username: Coop
Password: Group1844

Bullying and Harrassment
We do everything we can to make
our Co-op a great place to work,
where colleagues feel safe and
comfortable to be themselves.
Our Bullying and Harassment
Policy is available to everyone on
the intranet.
If you have any worries, you can
contact the Whistle Blowing
helpline on 0800 374 199.
Or contact the Co-op Food
Bullying, Harassment and
Discrimination helpline on
0844 728 0165
or by email at
h&bcomplaints@coop.co.uk
Your case will be handled
sensitively and with integrity.

Page 47
Finding your bearings

7

Join us

We are a fully inclusive network and
welcome male members who want
to get involved. Aspire holds several
events each month which include
informal networking discussions,
lunch and learn workshops and
‘roundtable’ sessions where senior
women share their career journey.

Aspire is an informal support
system for Co-op women who
wish to pro-actively develop
themselves, build a network or
advance their career with the
Co-op.

If you want to become a
member, or are interested
about finding out more,
email us at
aspire@coop.co.uk
or get in touch via Twitter
@aspire_co_op

•

•

•

•

Regular communication with
other, like-minded colleagues
with similar aims.
Facilitated and informal
networking opportunities both
across and outside of the
Co-op.
Access to a broad range of
resources to enable you to plan
and move towards progressing
your career.
‘Lunch and crunch’ sessions
that enable you to broaden
your personal and professional
development.
Opportunities to engage with
the network and contribute
to it’s future either through
your Aspire Steering Team
or contributing articles and
ideas to the Aspire member
magazine.
If you want to become a
member, or are interested
about finding out more,
email us at
respectLGBT@coop.co.uk
or get in touch via Twitter
@cooprespectLGBT

Join
Joinusus

We believe that creating a
workplace where everyone can
flourish is up to all of us; that’s
why everyone is welcome to join
Respect, whether you identify as
LGBT+ or not.

We have two simple aims: to make
sure LGBT+ colleagues can be
themselves at work and to promote
LGBT+ equality throughout the
Co-op and beyond.

Respect is the Co-op’s lesbian, gay,
bisexual and transgender (LGBT+)
network.

Socialise
Events give colleagues a chance to
meet new people and learn more
about LGBT+ issues, culture and
history.

Inform
LGBT+ issues matter. We make sure
that colleagues’ voices are heard at
the highest levels of our Co-op.

Develop
We help colleagues get the most
out of their careers through
mentoring schemes, training and
careers advice.

Support
Going through a difficult time
because of your sexuality or gender
identity, or know someone who is?
We’re here for you.

We offer:

•

What do we do?

What do we do?

Our Co-op is very proud to attract such a diverse workforce. Creating a culture where colleagues can be authentic, honest, and true. Where individuals are
encouraged to flourish, feel engaged and rewarded. We remain a reputable inclusive employer amongst our peers, recognising that ‘variety is the spice of life’
and that self-expression and creativity are essential when enable colleagues to develop their full potential.”

“Here at the Co-op we strive to create an environment that embraces individuality, celebrates the fact that everyone is different yet equal and where every
colleague is treated with dignity and respect.

Page 48

Policy and procedure
Here at the Co-op we are proud of presenting a professional image to our customers.
We’ll provide you with a uniform in order to keep you looking smart, and any other appropriate protective
clothing to protect our food products from sources of contamination. But, we don’t want to be too strict; we
respect individual differences and understand you may sometimes want to express yourself through how you
look.
To minimise any risk to heath and
safety, if you wear jewellery, tuck
any loose items out of harm’s way.

If you have long hair, false
nails or nail extensions,
be sensible - make sure
they don’t get in the way
of you carrying out your
job.

Piercings that might get caught or
fall out shouldn’t be worn.
Remember to wear your name
badge so customers and
colleagues know who you are.

Keep your feet safe by
wearing clean, dark, flat
shoes that protect your
toes.

We don’t want to make our
customers sick so hands and nails
must be kept clean and tidy.

Other things you need to know
Make sure that your Manager or Buddy has gone through the following policies with you. You can also find
all our policies on How Do I, or on the intranet under HR > People Policies. If you have any questions, don’t be
afraid to ask.
Advanced rate of pay and when you’ll be eligible
How to book a holiday and the amount of notice you need to give
The Day 1 Policy Information sheets
How to clock in and out
How to read and understand the rota
How to report sickness and that you’ve understood the Absence Policy
We know there may be times when you need to be off work due to health or other reasons. It’s important that
you read and understand the Absence Policy and follow the instructions.
You will not be paid for the first 3 days of any sickness absence.

Page 49
Finding your bearings

9

Shifts
Shifts allows you to view your working schedules on your mobile device. Simply go to shifts.coop.co.uk and
enter your employee number and mobile number to receive a login code.
However, if you do need a paper copy of your schedules you can
request this from your Manager if you need to.
Here’s what Shifts will show you:
• Future and past schedules - 3 weeks in the future and 12 weeks in
the past
• Paycodes
• Live clock-times - to see when you clocked in/out
• Rota - to see when your colleagues are working
• Shift preferences - to see your contract hours and maximum and
minimum shift
• Pay dates
• Break Rules - see what breaks you’re entitled to
• The store you’re working in
• Manager’s highlighted on the rota in bold
Make sure your mobile number is correct in the MyHR system so you
can access it. If any of the information is incorrect, then speak to your
manager. You can find more information on Shifts on How Do I.

Notes

Page 50
10

Explore your store

Now that you’ve had a tour and learnt a bit about your job, your first task is to find your way around.
Use the grid above to draw a sketch of your store, it doesn’t have to be perfect but going around and having a
look at what goes where will really help you find your feet. There’s an example at the bottom of the page.
Here’s a few ideas of things to show:
• First Aid Box
• Emergency Exits
• Warehouse
• Back Office / Kitchen

• Location of Rota
• Location of Fire Extinguishers
• Shop layout (include Ambient, Frozen,
Confectionery, Fresh, Food to Go, Checkouts etc.)

Office
Loading Doors / Fire Exit

Fire Exit

Beers, Wines and Spirits

Checkouts

Rota

In Store Bakery

Frozen

Ambient

Confect.

Ambient

Food to Go

Front Door /

Fresh Milk

Fresh
Fruit & Veg

Warehouse

Kitchen / Break area

First Aid Box

Fire Extinguisher

Page 51
Finding your bearings

11

More about us
Now’s a great time to have a look around your store and learn a bit more about it. Have a go at answering
these questions:

Our Food
Find an Irresistible product - what is it?
What makes it Irresistible?
Find a promotion - how do you know it’s a promotion?
How much is our Co-op bread?
Where does our Co-op Pinot Grigio come from?
What does the Red Tractor mark tell you about our meat?

Your Store
What time does your store open and close on a weekday?
Find your store’s True North compass - what’s your store doing well in?
What does this mean for our customers?

Our Ethics
How much money does the One Foundation receive for every litre of Co-op water sold?
Find a bar of Co-op chocolate - what does it tell you about Fair Trade?
What other things can you find in store that are fairly traded?

Page 52
12

Finding your bearings

Community and membership

Page 53
Community and membership

13

Membership in your community
Our Co-op Membership not only brings benefits to you but also benefits your local community.
Your Buddy will now tell you all about our membership offer and how that works in your local community.
To help you be the best you can, we have a challenge for you. Fill in the questions below after your
conversation with your Buddy. You might need to speak to other colleagues or your Store Manager to find the
answers.

About membership
What % reward is ‘for you’?

What % reward is ‘for your community’?

Where can members find out their reward balance?

What Co-op businesses can members earn reward in?

Colleague member benefits
How do you become a colleague member?
What % discount do colleague members get in store?

Community
What are your three local causes?

How are the local causes chosen?

How do members choose which local causes to send their community reward to?

Page 54
14

Community and membership

Membership in your community
Joining membership
How much does it cost to become a member?

What ways can customers become members?

What do customers need to do in order to register their temporary card?

Can temporary card holders spend rewards?

More on membership
What are independent Co-op societies?

What can our members do on their online account?

How to join as a colleague
If you are already a member of our Co-op you
should call our membership contact centre on
0800 023 4708 with your employee number and
they will convert you to a colleague member.
If you are not a member already you can join online
and quote your employee number to become a
colleague member.
Page 55
Community and membership

15

Talking membership
This is your first introduction to the world of ‘talking membership’ with our customers, you will learn more
about this when you attend your ‘Welcome to Co-op’ event.
A good thing to remember is that your colleagues will be clued up with membership; watch how they
introduce it to our customers.
You are a customer yourself so consider how you would like membership to be mentioned to you. We really
want you to use your judgement. For example, if a customer looks like they are in a rush it might not be a
good time to mention all aspects of our membership offer, just like on the other hand, if a customer has a full
basket or trolley we will have more time to talk through the key benefits of the offer.
Here’s a few suggestions of things you could say and a re-cap of the key messages:

Shop—Own brand
products and
services
Join—£1 buys a
share
in our business

Are you a member
of our Co-op?

Hello, can I swipe
your membership
card?

Talking
Membership

5% for you
when you choose
Co-op products and
services

1% for your
community
when you
choose Co-op
products and
services

Did you know you can
donate 1% of what
you spend on own
brand products to
one of three local
causes?

Page 56
16

Community and membership

Core modules

Page 57
Core modules

17

Setting you up for success
Your core modules are essential to set you up in your new role.
They should be completed in your first week but some need to be completed before you do certain tasks, as
it’s the law.
We’ve provided you with a checklist below to make sure you cover everything you need to in your first week.
What do you need
to do?

When you need
to do it by

Delivered by
CITRUS

Manager/
Buddy

Details

Day 1 Policy
Information Sheet

Day 1

We need you to know about our
policies on HR Shared Services >
People Policies and How Do I

Essential Petrol Skills
(petrol sites only)

Day 1

If you work in one of our petrol
sites please complete this before
starting any work so you know
how to work safely with petrol.

Health and Safety

Day 1

Your safety is important to us and
it’s essential that you know the
health and safety rules to follow in
your store.

Scottish Licensing
(Scotland only)

Day 1

If you work in one of our Scottish
stores, it’s the law that you need to
complete this before going on the
shopfloor.

Tobacco Display Ban
• Scotland
Before working
• England
on checkouts
• Wales

There are different rules
depending on where your store
is and the size of your store. Your
Store Manager will assign the
right module for your store.

Age Matters
(Level 1)

Before working
on checkouts

We want you to follow our
Challenge 25 Policy to protect
you and our Co-op when you’re
selling restricted products, which
is why you need to complete this
before working on the checkouts.

Post Office Local
(Post Office Local
stores only)

Before working
on checkouts

If your store has a Post Office
Local kiosk you will need to refer
to How Do I for training before
dealing with any Post Office
services that we offer.

Page 58
18

Core modules

Setting you up for success
Before handling any
products

We want to keep our customers
healthy so it’s important that
you are aware of our food safety
practices in store before handling
any of our products.

Availability

Week 1

We want our products to be
available at the right time, in the
right place in the right quantity
for our customers to buy.

Energy &
Environment
Induction

Week 1

We want to be energy efficient as
it protects the environment and it
reduces our costs.

Week 1

We want you to feel safe at work.
Although some of the situations
in this module are few and far
between you need to know what
to do if any of them happen in
your store.

Week 1

Our customers expect great
shopfloor standards when they
visit your store so we’re going to
show you what you need to do to
meet those standards.

Week 1

You must complete your training
during your first week. Using the
store’s workstation, go to the
Food Intranet Home page and in
“ Quick Links” on the right side of
the screen, click on “General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR)”.
Log in using your employee
number as your username and
password.

Food Safety

Keeping it safe

Shopfloor basics

GDPR

Page 59
Core modules

19

Shop floor basics
In this module you will learn all of the core tasks you’ll need in order to do a brilliant job on the shop floor.
We’ll guide you through what good looks like and what you can do to make a difference in your store and for
our customers. By the end of the module you’ll have the skills and confidence to get started.
The module will consist of a pre work ‘Shop floor app’ where you’ll watch a series of virtual reality clips. Be
sure to watch these before starting the module. After that you’ll complete a series of activities and questions,
using the Shop floor workbook which your Buddy will hand to you. There will be various activities for you to
complete on your own and with your Buddy.

To download the app, simply
search Co-op Shop Floor
in the App Store or Google
Play Store
Logging in
Your log in is your store hub number, ask your Manager or Buddy if you’re unsure.
Your store will have a virtual reality headset for you to use, there’s some instructions on the next page on how
to use the headset. If you prefer not to use the headset that’s fine, you can choose the option on the screen. Try
sitting down whilst watching the clips for the first time.

Headset Instructions

Open the velcro
on the top

Pull open to
reveal the two
side panels

Secure the side
panels down
using the velcro
pads

Fold back the
two panels

Remove the
lense covers

Open out the
whole panel,
then fold it
underneath

Pop your device
inside, make
sure it’s secure
using the
rubber band

Page 60

20

Core modules

Welcome to Co-op

Page 61
Welcome to Co-op

21

Invitation
You are invited to attend a
‘Welcome to Co-op’ event.
It will be a fun and relaxed event all about
looking at how you can have a positive impact
on our customers and making your store the
best it can be.
Book your event with your Store Manager and
note the details below:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Page 62
22

Welcome to Co-op

Department training

Page 63
Department training

23

Electronic Point of Sale (EPOS)
For this module you should complete the questions below with support from your Buddy.
There will be various activities for you to complete on your own and with your Buddy.

Shelf Edge Labels (SELs)
Why are SELs important?

Where do SELs sit?

What information is shown on a SEL? Use your knowledge to complete the information below:

£1.00

£1.00 per item
Co-op Irresistible Xmas Chocolate Star Muffin EACH
Energy: 2186kj/523kcal Contains Egg, Milk, Soya, Wheat
Member

0000000000722 813141 1F

What else is shown on the SEL for produce? Why’s it important?

Find the SEL for Diet Coke cans, what’s different about it? What does the symbol mean?

What do you do if there’s a SEL missing?

Page 64
24

Department training

Electronic Point of Sale (EPOS)
Point of Sale (POS)
What other labelling and signs can you see around the store?

What’s a POS kit and when would you use it?

What’s a planogram? How do you use it to position products?

What advertising can you see from outside your store? Why is it important?

What do you do if there’s a POS sign missing?

How do you run a price check on the shelves?

Page 65
Department training

25

Warehouse
For this module you should complete your ‘Colleague Warehouse Workbook’ which will be given to you by
your Buddy.
There will be various activities for you to complete on your own and with your Buddy.

Pre-work
Watch the Warehouse clip on the Shop floor app before completing the module.

Page 66
26

Department training

News and Mags
We want to offer our customers great News and Mags all day, everyday. We’ll show you all the processes
from delivery to returns and explore how we can do this in the most cost effective way for our Co-op.
Your News and Mags training is delivered via CITRUS and then you should buddy up with another colleague to
shadow them so you get the on-job experience before being let loose on your own.
Your Store Manager needs to assign the following modules for you to complete:

Module 1 - Delivery and Service Levels
In this module we’ll look at how your news and mags get to your store and how you should check to ensure
you get everything you’re being charged for by the supplier.

Module 2 - Merchandising & Weekly Activity
In this module we’ll look at what great merchandising looks like and what you need to do on a weekly basis to
keep your news and mags section looking great for our customers.

Module 3 - Returns & Documentation
In this module we’ll look at how to complete the returns process and the documentation that you need to
complete, along with it to make sure your store gets the right credits.

Module 4 - Order Levels & Customer Orders
In this module we’ll look at how you can amend your order levels if you’re getting too much stock, or not
enough stock and how you can order one-off requests for customers.

Page 67
Department training

27

Checkouts
There is a ‘Core Checkout Guide’ opposite for you to use whilst completing your ‘Colleague
Checkout Workbook’. Your workbook will be handed to you by your Buddy.
There will be various activities for you to complete on your own and with your Buddy.
Here’s some instructions on how to fold up your ‘Core Checkout Guide’:

Front

Back

Folding instructions

1
2
3

Tear out the Core
Checkout Guide

Flip the Core
Checkout Guide so the
back page is facing you

Fold down the middle
vertically

4

Fold along the centre
horizontally

5

Fold along the centre
horizontally again

6

Your Core Checkout Guide
is complete and ready to
carry in your pocket

Page 68
28

Department training

The 5p charge doesn’t apply to the following:
• Thin plastic bags for loose produce
• Any plastic bags used for raw unpackaged meat,
poultry or fish (only applicable in stores with
butchery or fish counters)
• Paper bags used for loose bakery items, loose
food to go products or pick ‘n’ mix sweets
• Flower bags
• Cardboard wine carriers

The 5p charge applies to the following bags:
• Standard single use carrier bags – the customer
must be charged 5p for each carrier bag taken

• To void a single item: press Line Void > Enter the
number of the line you need to take off the bill
• To void the whole transaction: press Managers
Function > Void Transaction > Yes
• For a refund: press Managers Function > Refund
> scan the product > select the correct reason
code. If the customer doesn’t want to make a
complaint press No
• For customer complaints follow the till prompt
to fill in the customer details>press No if the
customer doesn’t have a membership card or
Yes and scan if they have a card
• Enter the amount of the refund then press cash
if the customer paid cash for the item. Press
EFT if the customer paid with a card. Ask the
customer to sign the refund receipt and place in
the till. Give the customer the value in money if
it’s a cash refund
• Complete the transaction by pressing Managers
function > No Sale > Yes then place the receipt
in the till

Core
Checkout
Guide

The law requires all stores to charge for single use
carrier bags given out.

Lottery

• Process the Lottery through the Lottery terminal
following the Lottery terminal training guide
which can be found on How do I policies >
Lottery training guide
• Scan the Lottery ticket barcode on the till. If the
barcode does not scan, press Lottery > Lottery
sales > type in the amount of the ticket > Enter
• A prompt will then ask you if the customer is over
25. Follow the Challenge 25 Policy to complete
this section of the transaction
• Scan any other items the customer may have and
complete the transaction as normal. Ensure the
customer receives their Lottery ticket
• Thank them for their custom and wish them a
good day

Voids and Refunds

Ask customers if they have their own bag, if not
offer one, informing them of the 5p charge or the
bag for life option. Offer to pack the customer's
bag for them. Thank them and say good bye.

• Carefully follow the screen instructions when
carrying out all transactions. Only when the
transaction has completed should you give the
customer back their card, key or bill, and hand
them their PayPoint receipt
• For transport ticket transactions, remember
to place and seal the receipt within the receipt
wallet provided
• If you’re not sure if you can accept a customer’s
card, key or bill - just try it or look through your
terminal touch screen menus
• A small percentage of PayPoint transactions
will fail. This is caused by a network failure with
PayPoint
• The till will display a prompt then add the value
of the failed transaction to the change due on
the till screen and on the receipt

• The till will display a prompt then will move
into refund mode with the value of the failed
transaction pre-populated on the basket screen
• The cashier should press sub-total and complete
the refund using the original tender method
(either EFT or a mix of EFT and cash)
• The customer will be asked to reinsert their bank
card and re-enter their pin, a customer copy
refund receipt will be produced. NB: the refund
may take a couple of days to be credited back
into the customer’s bank account
• The till will display a prompt and will auto
cancel the EFT, no receipt is produced and the
customer will NOT be asked to re-insert their
bank card. NB: the value of this transaction may
be displayed as a pending transaction in the
customer’s bank account for up to 10 days

PayPoint is a well-recognised brand that enables customers to pay a wide variety of bills including utility
bills, with cards, keys, tokens etc. and allows for mobile and overseas top ups to be purchased.

PayPoint

Gift Cards

•

•

•

•

•

Scan the long barcode on the back of the gift
card, when the sale appears on the till screen,
check the amount is correct
Once a gift card is activated, the transaction
should never be voided unless a card is declined
or the customer does not have enough cash
If this is the case you should send the gift card
back to the supplier. Phone operational store
support for more information on 0844 262 2001
Option 2
Scan any other items the customer may have
and complete the transaction as normal
Once the transaction is complete you will get
a gift card receipt with the customer’s normal
receipt. Make sure you give the customer both
receipts. Thank them for their custom and wish
them a good day

Never scan the little barcode on the
back of the gift card. This will charge
the customer but not activate it.

Carrier Bags

Saving Stamps

Sales
• Press Service > Saving Stamps > enter the
amount of saving stamps the customer
requested. Complete the transaction as normal
• When the till opens give the customer the
amount of saving stamps requested. As the
stamps are sticky, always make sure that you’ve
only given out the right amount

Redemption
• Make sure the customer has stuck all the saving
stamps onto a saving stamp card and filled in
their details on the back of the card
• At the payment screen enter the value of the
saving stamps and press saving stamp
• Put a pen mark across the stamps to show
they’ve been used and place the saving stamps
into your till
• Each saving stamp is the value of £1. Change
can only be give up to the value of 99p.
Saving stamps can’t be used to buy lottery,
concessions, coffee shop products or fuel

Page 69

Standards
To ensure we deliver and meet customer
expectations every time they choose to shop
with us, we have store standards in place to
keep things running smoothly.
• Make sure all damaged and loose stock has
been removed
• Keep all items in the right place and labelled
• Replenish kiosk supplies (till rolls / carrier
bags) in the designated area
• Wipe down surface areas to keep them clean
• Make sure the floor is clean and clear of slip,
trip and fall hazards
• Tidy and replenish kiosk displays
• Keep the cigarette gantry doors closed with
price list displayed
• Adopt a ‘clean as you go’ process on all
sections
• Ensure all legal signage is displayed
• Make sure there are clean customer baskets
available – trolleys if applicable
• Keep the managers workstation clear and
clutter free
• During busy periods make sure the combi
Post Office till has colleagues to cover
• Make sure your kiosk is set up to planogram
• Keep the kiosk door free from clutter and
parcels
• Keep carrier bags stocked up so that they’re
available when the customer needs one

Things that shouldn’t
be on the kiosk:
• Reduced to clear products
• Anything that blocks customers
or causes a safety issue
• Multiple charity boxes
• Lost and found items

Visitor sign in
•

•

•
•

Any contractors must sign in and out of the
visitors book upon arriving at and leaving the
store
Let contractors know your store’s fire safety
provisions, procedures and arrangements
upon arrival at the store. The ‘visitor/contractor
instructions sheet’ should be attached to the
front of the visitors book for this purpose
Any accidents or incidents involving a contractor
must be reported using the Accident process
Let contractors know of any site specific hazards
which they should be aware of during their visit,
such as deliveries

A great looking
kiosk gives our
customers the
right impression
about our stores
- clean and well
organised
Maintain a clean,
tidy, clutter-free
and efficient Kiosk
with everything in
the right place and
readily available

Offer a quick and
efficient service
for our customers,
which will result
in happy/loyal
customers that will
return to our stores

Customer
Conversation: Deals

25

Please be prepared
to show ID when buying
age restricted products

UNDER 25?

U

A Challenge 25 process is used to confirm the age
of any person trying to buy an age restricted item.
You must challenge any customer who appears to
be under the age of 25, to produce an acceptable
form of identification if they’re buying an item
which is age restricted. The till point will also
remind you to do this.

Age Related Sales
Challenges

• Increasing awareness of our offers in stores
gives customers the confidence that we as a
business offer great value for money
• Engaging with customers also provides a high
level of customer service and shows customers
that we care about their needs - we don’t see
them as just another transaction
• Always be aware of what’s currently on
promotion
• Engage with customers on the shop floor and
chat to them about what’s in their basket remember to greet them with eye contact and
a smile
• Chat with the customer on both the shop floor
and the kiosk, offering alternatives and meal
solutions where necessary

Page 70

Additional department training

Page 71
Additional department training

31

Become a specialist
There are some departments we have that your store may or may not have. These are specialist areas and
not all colleagues will need to be trained on them. If you’re interested in these and your store has them, have
a conversation with your Store Manager to let them know.

Bakery/Hot Food/Coffee
We want our customers to love our prepared food departments. We’ll show you what you need to do to
cook and display the products and how to make sure our products are available. We’ll explore food safety in
relation to our prepared food departments and how this can impact on our customers.
You will need to have completed the Food Safety Level 2 course.

Delicatessen
We want to offer our customers a great deli service. We will show you how to operate a deli and how to make
our products look their best. We’ll explore what you need to do to deliver great customer service.
You will need to have completed the Food Safety Level 2 course.

Post Office
We want to give our Post Office customers great service whilst operating within Post Office guidelines. We’ll
show you what services are available and how to meet our customers needs.

Cash
We want our cash to be handled with care. We’ll show you what you should do with our cash to handle it
securely. We’ll explore how cash handling is an important part of your role and what could happen when we
don’t follow the correct processes.

Page 72
32

Additional department training

Ready, set, go!

Page 73
Ready, set, go!

33

Ready, set, go!
The following questions are designed to help you remember the information you’ve learnt during your
induction. Jot down your answers and show them to your Store Manager who will be able to check them
for you. It’s important that you complete these as they are part of your induction sign off.

Introduction to Co-op
Name the Ways of Being Co-op values and describe what they mean to you.

What does it mean to be a member of our Co-op?

What rewards do members get?

Page 74
34

Ready, set, go!

Ready, set, go!
How do you set up new members using a temporary card?

Community
What are the local causes your store supports?

How were the local causes selected?

Page 75
Ready, set, go!

35

Ready, set, go!
Shop floor
What type of customers visit your store?

What times of the day is your store busiest?

On average how much money does your store make each week?

Walk around your shop floor with your Store Manager or another colleague imagining that you’re a customer.
Talk to them about anything you think could be improved on your shift or in the future. Write a couple of key
points down afterwards to summarise what you talked about with them.

Page 76
36

Ready, set, go!

Ready, set, go!
Service
How can you provide great service on the shop floor?

How can you provide great service when you’re on the checkout?

How can you help to manage queues in your store?

What do customers think about your store?

Page 77
Ready, set, go!

37

Ready, set, go!
News and Mags
Showcase the News and Mags section to your Store Manager or another colleague and describe how it shows
‘what good looks like’. Write a couple of key points down afterwards to summarise what you talked about
with them.

Bakery (if trained)
Showcase your Bakery department to your Store Manager or another colleague after you’ve been working in
it. Describe ‘what good looks like’ in the Bakery. Write couple of key points down afterwards to summarise
what you talked about with them.

Store Manager sign off
Once you’ve completed the questions above sit down with your Store Manager who will check them for you.
They should then sign below to confirm that they have checked these and signed off your induction.
Store Manager name:
Store Manager signature:
Date:

Page 78
38

Ready, set, go!

Notes

Co-op and SORTEDfood bring you Now Cook It.
The first step to help address the cooking skills gap.

Page 79
39

Designed by Co-op Food HR 2018
Owned and distributed by Co-op Food HR. Any
unauthorised reproduction, distribution or use of
this material is not permitted. For internal use only.
Version:

1.6

(23.07.18)

Page 80

